S.R. BATLIBO! & ASSOCIATES LLP i gL

Chartered Accountants Survey No. 83/1, Raidurgam
Hyderabad - 500 032, India

Tel : +91 40 6141 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks I'T Consulting Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as
Whishworks I'T Consulting Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the “Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 33 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free {rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(8]

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a
statement on the matlers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In ouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2 to this
report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
vear ended 31 March 2022;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

V.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ., no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries’™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the company from any person or entily, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behall’ of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

d) The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of'this
audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Jlr Bopgers

per Atin Bhargav\ﬁ

Partner

Membership Number: 504777
UDIN: 22504777TAIHVMET7534

Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 02 May 2022
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(@)

(ii)

(iii)

Annexure 1 referred to in our report of even date

Re:

Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Private Limited) (“the

Company™)

(a)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets
so to cover all the assets once every two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property. Plant and Equipment
were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verilication,

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly. the requirement
to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended 31 March 2022,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company:.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or
provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted
loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(e)

)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Loans, mvestments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company. There are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed
to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax and other statutory dues were
outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as
follows

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six months

Name of the statute Nature of the | Amount (Rs) | Period to which | Date of Remarks, if
dues the amount | payment | any

N relates

The Employees | Provident 3,178,800 | FY2011- Not  yet | None

Provident funds and | Fund 12-FY paid

Miscellaneous 2018-19

Provisions Act ,1952

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any lender during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.
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(©)

(d)

(e)

(f

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(c)

(xii) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence. the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013 has been filed
by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therelore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of
the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report under
clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report under
clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained
a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to

a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 18(b) to the financial statements.
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(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special
account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 18(b) to the financial statements.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

M Plusgars

per Atin Bhargav

Partner

Membership Number: 504777
UDIN: 22504777AIHVMET7534
Place of Signature: Delhi

Date: 02 May 2022
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF COFORGE SF PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS WHISHWORKS
IT CONSULTING PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Coforge SF Private
Limited (formerly known as Whishworks 1T Consulting Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Respousibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's mternal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants :
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atlin Bhargava\"'

Partner

Membership Number: 504777
UDIN: 22504777AIHVMET7534
Place of Signature: Delhi

Date: 02 May 2022
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Statement uf Profit and Loss for the yenr ended 31 Mareh 2022

EAl amannts m Indion Rupees Fakhs, enept Tog share ditt or s stheny ise statsd)

For the yenr endbed

For the vear ended

Erpriheatiry Notss Mareh 2022 Mareh 2021
Revenue fou contiicts with customers 14 8740 0,720
Uither teome i3 2013 el
Tulnl income 11,761 LG
Expenses
st ol services 3 30
Emiplovee benelits expense 6 Fan6 3432
Depreciation-and amorisation espense 17 27 151
Dithier expenses |8 1ty | 0a1
Fapnce eosts 14 ) 2ty
Toial expenses 6,782 R
Prafit befove tay e 2 R0h
Iicenne L expunse; n
- Current s 323 T2
- Adpustment of s relating w earler periods 1485 137)
= Deferred ax 132} !
Total tax expense 443 493
Pralil for the vear 3530 1403
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Fremns Wt widi not be veglay seffed des prosit ar foss
Remeasurement of post - emploviment benetit obfigations teoie. {expinses) kY 513
Income tax elTew 2 {1 13
Other comprehensive incomel{loss) for the yenr, net ol tay L) (38)
Total comprelensive incame for the year, net of fay 3565 1865
Eavnings per shave (EPS) .|
Bkt carnings per share (Rs ) ) ot
Irluged cornings per share (Rs ) 1.382 o
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Calarge SF Private Limited (formerly known s W hishwo s 1T Consalting Pyvi, Lid.)

CIN: U72200T4G2000P1 ¢ 067287
sl flow statement for the venr ended 31 Marel 2022

CAdbamounts i ndian Rupees Lakhs except (be share datn mas oherwise sty

Particulars Notes 3 SEareh 2022
Cush flow From operating activities -
Pealit befor: tneane s 1Ty 3 S0
Adjustments for;
Preprecianon sl amorusation espense. meluding iph-oltuse assets 27 154
Interest - others o
Ieterest on fease Habilities T 2
it o sile of sl pssers (nens iy
Dividend yneome [RERE & -
Allowance for doubtfil debis n 1]
Adiustment on aceout of re-ossessment of lenses (el 116)
Uinrenlised forergn cxehanee (eaingloss 124
Interest income on anseinding of teprang {71
Fmployes share based paviment expense .
Irterest imeesme on depositsy i1
Waorking capital adjustmenis:
Hreise n ather nuncurren lnancial dssets . (RN
Increase i irade reecrvalies 11 7681 okt (3]
Uhnerease bdeerease in othier surent nneinl gascls {14 i (!
Tnerease in othor assets [Rr N ey
Inereasesddecreased in provisions L1
Inerease(deereases in trade payables 1
Increased decrense ) in other current liabilines 78
Cash genepated from operations 57
lneome wses paidl [TrS) [dasy
Net ensh Rows from operating activities 251 1,691
Cash How Trom investing nctivities
Purehase of property, plant and equipment (2480 147
lvestiment 1m non eurent my estment [
Trvestiment i bank deposits - 91
Dividend recerved 1888 5
Interest recerved on deposits | 2
Netensh Mows from/ (used fn} inyesting setivities 1.338 {58)
Cash fow [rom financing activities
Repaviwent ol lease habilnes (138 | [50y
Dividend paviment to sharcholders 12098 I
St cash Auws vsed in Gnancing activities (2,230) {15%)
Net (decpease)’ inerease in cosh und cash equivalents (h3Y) L7
liffeet of exchange differcnees on cash & eash cquivalents held in etz curreney " a2
Cash imd cash equivalents il the beginmag ol the ven 3487 wil
Cush and cash equivalents at vear end [Ruit 2437
Components of eash and cash equivalents
Cash on handi Stiv) fi 0
Balunees with hanks
= 10 current aceounis 1 BIE DA
Total cush nnd cash equivalents 1.818 2,457
3
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Cufurge 55 Privite Linited (Tormerdy kisown ns Whishworks 1T Co nsuhting Py il
CENG V7220071 G20100T( 067247

Statenrent of Changes in Kquity for the vear ended 31 Marel 2022

LA mowns i Inclian Rupues Lakls, exaept B shinre data or as othersise sated)

# Eyuily share vapinl

Equity shares of Re. 10 ench issued, subseribed il Tully paid Sumber Anmovnt
As at 3 March 2020 133058 X3
Fguny shares issued during the vear 17016 2
As 0131 March 2021 B[had 15
Bty shires issued during tie vear AR 1
Asat 31 Mareeh 2022 256,959 20
Preference shaces of Rs, 10 eaeh issuel, subseribed and Tully paid Number Amount
As ot 3 Magch 2020 L0500 ]
Clhngas i prefereace share capitai {108 5000 (1ih)
As it 31 Maeeh 2021 = =
Ul in preference share vapil R
Asat 31 March 2022 = o
b {iher equity
seeiritivs Emplovee Hetined Capital Totul
__reminm stoel vption earnings userve
Bakanee as at (1 April 2020 T3 G} 21490 - 2,987
Profit Tor the vew - . 1503 1905
Otlier comprehensive loss, et of 1y - - 3 - 3%
Shares LUCCT) Into Fyuity . - o U]
Impaet on fair vabuasion of employee stoek aptions ) - 7 - 7
Balianee s st 31 March 2021 ) 137 67 40155 9 JA68
Prolit tor the vear - - 3530 = 3536
Other comprehensive ineome, et of fax - - a9 = an
Shines ssued an exerease of eimplovee of stock options teler note 904 1 I W * 3
Transfer onaceount of excreise of stock aptons (refer nole Y0 68 (nd) - B -
Dnviclend paid (refer aote 9 - - (L0498 - 12 U9
Balance as nt 31 Mareh 2022 86 - 5,522 v 0,337
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Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Clonsulting Pve. Lid.)
CIN: U72Z00TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except lor share data or as otherwise stuted)

1.

2.1
(»)

(b)

2.2

(a)

Corporate information

Coforge SF Privawe Limited ("the Company”) is n private company domiciled in lndia and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act. applicable in India, Company name has been changed from Whishworks
1T Consulting Private Limited o Coforge SF Privale Limited w.e.l) 02 lanuary 2022, The Company is a
subsidiary of Coforge Limited (formerly known as *NITT Technologies Limited’) having its principal place of
business located at Hyderabad, India. The Company renders business IT solutions including consulting and
system integration services (comprising of enterprise solutions. system integration and advance technologies)
and also renders Big Data analytics services, The Company is enguged in rendering sofiware development and
related services to Coforge ST Limited (formerly known as Whishworks Limited UK). ifs subsidiary. and also
to its external customers. It is also engaged in reselling of the subseription lieenses to external customers,

The financial statements were authorised or issue in accordance with 1 resolution of the directors on 02 May
2022,

Significant nccounting policies
This note provides a list of the signilicant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied wo alt the vears presented, vnless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordunee with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notificd under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to lime).

Coforge Limited (formerly known as NHT Technologies Limited). the holding company prepares its
consolidated financial statements including the Company in accordance with Ind AS and liles the same with the
Registrar, The Company has there fore availed the exemption provided under Companices (Accounts) Anendment
Rules. 2016 and has not prepared consolidated financial statements,

Historical cost conventlion

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the Tollowing assets and

liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

» certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments): and

# defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

The linancial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) and all values are rounded o the nearest lakhs
(Rs.00.000). except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classificalion,

Anassel is treated as current when it is;

i.  Expected to be realised or intended o be sold or consumed in normal operating evele.

ii.  Held primarily or the purpose of trading,

il Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  Cashorcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Coforge 5F Privale Limited (formerly known as Whishworks I'T Consulting Pvt. Litd,)
CIN: U7Z200TG2010PTCO67287

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(I}

(c)

A diability is current when:

i s expected (o be seutled in normal operating cyele,

i, Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

ii.  Tuis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months afler the
reporting period.

All other labilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current asseis and liabilitics,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve manths as ils operating eyele.

Foreign curreney trasslation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company is measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency’). Financial statements of the
Company are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.). which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

All Toreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the funetional currency and the forcign currencey at the monthly rate. Fareign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation ol monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in [oreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in lerms ol historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All monetary assets wnd
liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of the accounting period. Exchange difference on restatement
of all other monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investment in mutual funds. at lair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurcment is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or lransfer the liability takes place either -

# inthe principal market lor the asset or lability. or

#  inthe absence of'a principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the asset or liability

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as [ollows. based on the lowesi level inpul that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

# o Level | Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilitics

F o Level 2. Valualion techniques Tor which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair va
measurement is direetly or indirectly observable

#  Level 5~ Valuation techniques for which the Towest level inpul that is significant to the fair value
megsurement is unobservable

ue

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For (his analysis,
management regularly reviews sianificant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

€
AS

O

LL

O
O

HYDERABAD



Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks 1T Consulling Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: UT2200FG2010PTC067287

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(d) Revenue frem contract with customer
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or reecivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net ol diseounts and taxes. The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economie benefits will flow to the Company and specifie eriteria have been
met for each of the Company's activities as deseribed below. The Compuny bases ity estimales on historical
results. laking into consideration the type of customer. the type ol transaction and the specifics of cach
arrpngement,

As per IndAS 115, “Revenue fron Contracts with Customers™, revenue s recognized upon transfer of control ol
promised produets or services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect (o receive in
exchange for those products or services, The Company presents revenues net of indireet tixes in its statemenl ol
Profil and loss,

Rendering of serviees

The Company provides services o its subsidiary as weil as outside cusiomers. Revenue is recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. services have been rendered. the fee is determinable and
collectability is rensonably assured.

Revenue from rendering of services to subsidiary is recognized on ucerual basis for services rendered and billed
as per lerms of speeilic contracts.

Revenue from provision of trained resources o subsidiary are recognised as resourees are utilised by (or) services
are provided to the customer in accordance with the contract terms,

Time and material contracts
Revenue with respeet to time-and-material contracts is recognized as the related services are perforimed.

Fixed Price Contract

Revenue from fixed-price, fixed-capacity/ fixed monthly contracts. where (he performance abligations are
satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectahility ol consideration, is
recognized as per the percentage-of completion method. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability. revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved, Efforts or costs expended have
been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a dircef relationship between input and
productivity.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are treated as contract assets (which is referred as unbilled revenue) while
invoiving in excess of revenues are treated as contract liabilities (which is referred as deferred revenues), The
Company classilies amounts due [rom customer as receivable or unbilled revenue depending on whether the
right to consideration is unconditional. IIonly the pussage oftime is required before payment of the consideration
is due. the amount is classified as receivable. Otherwise, such amounts are classified as unbilled revenue.

Licenses and Annual Maintenance Servives

Revenue Irom reselling of licenses (these licenses are on-premises software which provide the customer with a
right to use the software as it exists when made available) is recognised on delivery i.c., when the sofiware is
made available to the customer by the principal seller/service provider. at net basis.

Revenue from annual maintenance services are recognised proportionately over the life of the contract,

Other income _
Interest income i
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking inta amount outstanding and applicable interest

rate.
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Coforge SF Private Limited (form erly known as Whishworks I'T Consuiting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes (o financial statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(e)

H

Dividends

Dividends are recognized in the Siatement of Profit and Loss only when the right o receive pavment is
established. it is probuble that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and
the amount ol the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income tax

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected 10 be recovered Trom or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted. at the reporting date.

The income lax expense or credit for the period is the tas payable on the current period's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for cach jurisdiction adjusted hy changes in delerred tus assets and fabilities
attributable to temporary differences,

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the counteies where the Company and its overseas branches aperate and generale
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 1t establishes provisions. where appropriate, on the
basis ol amounts expected to be paid to the 1ax authoritics.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method. on temn porary differences nrising between the
tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the (inancial statements. Delerred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset ar liability in a transaction other than @ business
combination that ut the time of the transaction affects neither uccounting profit nor taxable profit (fax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enucted or substantinlly enacted by
the ead of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tux asset is realized
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused (ax losses only il it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tas assets
and liabilitics and when the deferred tax balances relate to the sume taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities ure offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or (o realize the asset and settle the linbility simultaneously.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss, exeept o the extent that it relates
to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Leases
‘The Company ussesses at contiaet inception whether a contract is. or contains, a fease, That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identilied asset fora period ol time in exchange [or consideration.

Company as a lessee

In accordance with Ind AS 116. the Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leascs. except fur short-term leases. The Company recognises lease Tiabilitics o make lease payments and right-
ol~use ngsets representing the right to use the underlying assets. The Company recognises the cumulative efTect
of initially applying this Standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Lud.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287
Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended 31 KMarch 2022

(A1l amounts in [ndian Rupees 1ak

()

18, exeepl Tor share data or as otherwise stated)

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-ol=use assets al the commencement date of the leuse (i.e.. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation und
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remensurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-ol-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognised. initiul direet costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets we depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

IF awnership of the Teased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost rellects the
exercise of'a purchase option, depreciation is ealeulated using the estimated uselul life of the nsset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject 1o impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (2) npainnent
of non-financial assets,

Lease fiability ;

At the commencement date of the fense, the Company recognises lease liability measured at the present value ol
lease payments to be made over the lease terin. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that depend on an index
or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual valie suarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease puyments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in (he lease is not readily determinable. Afier the
commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is incrensed to refleet the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease fiabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification. a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (c.e.. changes to future payments
resulting from o change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) ora change in the assessment
ol'un option to purchase the underlying asset,

The Company’s lease labilities are included in Financial liabilities in the financial statements af the Company.

Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 10 its short-term lease ol premises (i.e.. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-tern lease is recognised as expense as and when in incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at cuch reporling date. whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1T
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required. the Company estimates the
assel’s recoverable umount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s or cash-cenerating unit’s
(CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
assel, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that arc largely independent of those from other assets or
Company's of assets. When the carrying amount ol un asset or CGU exceeds ils recoverable mmount. the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use. the estimated {uture cash fows are discounted (o their present value using a pre-lax
discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic to the
assel, In determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are taken into account, If no
stieh ansactions can be identificd. an appropriate valuation model is used. These caleulations are corraborated
by valuation multiples. quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

GESED
a
N.{

HYDERABAD

O
w
O
& O

*




Colorge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvi. Lid.)
CIN: Y72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(k)

(i)

The Company buses its impairment caleulation on detailed hudgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company™s CGUSs o which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast caleulations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods. a long-term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to projeet future cash Nows afier the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections heyond
periads covered by the most recent budgets/forecnsts. the Company extrapolates cash Now projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years. unless an increasing rate can be justified.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at cach reporting dute w defermine whether there is an indication that previously
recagnised impairment losses no longer exist or have deereased. 1 such indication exists. the Company estinales
the asset’s or CGL's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impaiement loss is reversed only il there hus
been a chunge in the assumplions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairmient
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset doces not exeeed its
recoverable amount, nor exceeed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net ol depreciation. had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of
Prafit and Loss unless the asset is carefed at a revalued amount, in which ease. the reversal is treated us a
revaluation increase,

Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the bulance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and short-term deposits with original maturitics of three months or less that are readily convertible o known
amounts of cash and which are subjeet to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Investments and other financial assets

Inifial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributahle 1o the acquisition of the financial assel.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes ol subsequent measurement. (inancial assels are classified in thice categorivs:
» Debt instruments at amortised cost; and :
> Debt instraments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCT): and

#  Debt instruments and derivatives al [air value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement ol debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset
and the cash low characteristics of the assel. There are two measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

Amorlized cost:

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost iUboth the following conditions are met:

# The asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
fows, and

# Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
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Coforge SF Private Limited {(form erly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. 1.4d.)
CIN: UT2200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except Tor share data or as otherwise stated)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Alter initial measurement. such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is inchided in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recagnised in the Statement of Prolit and Loss. This calegory genvrally applics
to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through other compreensive income (FVFOLT)

bt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporling date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCH). However, the
Company recognizes interest income. impairment losses & reversals and foreion exchange eain o loss in the
Profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset. cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCTis reclassificd
(rom the equity to Profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest
income vsing the BIR method.

Fair value through profit or loss:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt insteument, which does not meet the eriteria fot
categorization as al amorlized cost oras FVTOCL is classilied as at FVTPL., In addition. the Company may cleet
lo designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT eriteria, as at FVIPL.
However. such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or climinates 2 mecasurement or recognition
inconsistency. Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
tecognized in the Statement of Pro(il and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of'a Company of similar financial assets)

ix primarily derecounised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

> the rights to receive cash flows lrom the assel have expired. or

> the Company has transferred its rights ta receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an abligation to
pay the received cash flows in full withaut material delay 10 a third party under u ‘pass-through®
arrangement: and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct.
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has wansferred ils rights (o receive cash Tows from an asset or hus entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards ol ownership. When
it has neither translerred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor tansferred control
of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company s continuing
invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an assaciated linbility. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are meusured ona basis (hat reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has relained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum smount of consideration that the Company could he
required to repay,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition ol impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;

# Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.. loans, deposits, trade
receivables, contract asset and bank balance; and

# Trade receivables or any contractual right lo receive cash or another financial asset thal result from
transuetions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.
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(ALl aunounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

The Company lollows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
or contract revenue receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. il
recognises impairment loss allowunce based on litetime FCLs at each reporting date. vight frony its initial
recognition,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance witly the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.c.. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash Tows, Company is required lo consider all contrmetnal terms of the
finameial instrument (including prepayment and extension) over the expected lite of the financial instrument,
However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably. then the
Company is required to use the remaining contraciual term of the financial instrument.

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,

(i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurcment
Financial linbilities are classified. at initial recognition. as Tinancial labilities at fuir value through profit or loss
or as payables as appropriate. All financial liabilitics are recoenised initially at fair value and. in the case of
payables. net ol directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial labilities include trude and other
payables,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilitics al fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and financial
liabilities designated npon initial recognition as at fair value through profil or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the inilial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisficd. For liabilitics designated as
FVTPL. Tir value gains/ losses attributable 1o changes in own eredit risk are recognized in OCL These sains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However. the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such linbility are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any linancial linbility as ot fuie value through
profitand loss.

Derecognition

A linancial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantinlly dilferent terms.
or the terms ol an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as (he
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The dilference in the respeetive
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

(k) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforcenble right to offset the recognized amounts and there s an intention to setile on a net hasis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default. insolvency or
bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in [ndian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(1) Property, plant and equipment
Allitems of property. plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less acenmulated depreciation luss
tmpairment losses. Historical cost ineludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriale,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will llow 1o the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separale
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incorred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro-tata basis on the straight-line method aver the estimated uselul lives of the
assefs. The estimates ol uselul lives ol the assets are as [ollows:

Asset Useful life as per Schedule 1 of the Companies Aet. 2013
Cmnpu'lc'l"é" s e — ittt : S ik St
Furniture and lixtures 10 vears

Office equipment 3-5 yvears

Vehicles 8 vears

The asset's residual values and useful lile are reviewed, and adjusted iFappropriate. ot the end of each reporting
period.

The assel's carrying amount is written down immediately 1o it's recoverable amount il the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and lusses un disposals are detenmined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/expenses
as applicable,

(m) Intangible assets
Intangible assets represent computer software
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost. net of accumulated amortization and accumulaled impairment
losses. if any. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense and charged o the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation methods, estimated uselul lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated uselul lives determined based on an
internal technical valuation and charged ta Statement of Profit and Loss, The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as specilied in Schedule 11 of the Companies Aet. 2013 which is 3 vears.

The asset's useful life is reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting perivd.

{n) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as o resull of past
evenls. it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the ohligation and (the amount can be
reliably estimated. 11 the effeet of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate. the risks speeific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due Lo the passage of time is recognised as a linance cost.

Where there are a number of similar obligations. the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole,

Provisions are measured al the present value of management's best estimates of the expenditure incurred to setile
the present obligation at the end ol the reporting period.
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Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lukhs. except for share data of as otherwvise stuted)

(6) Retirement and other employee benefits
Befined Contribution Plans
Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made o the regulatory authorities, where the Company
has no further obligations, Such benefits are classified as Defined Conltribution Schemes as the Company does
not carry any further obligations. apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. The Company's
contributions o defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when
services are recejved (rom the enployees,

e

IDefined Benelit Plans !

The Campany provides for eratuity, a defined henefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) in aceordance with the Payiment
of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Gratuity Plan provides o lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death.
incapacitation or termination of employment. of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenuwre ol employment,

The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined henefit plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end ol the reporting period less fair value of the assets. The present value of the detined
benefit obligations denominated in Indian Rupees is determined by discounting the estimated funie eash
outflows by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting perind on government honds that have terms
approximating 1o the terms of related obligation. The contributions in tespeet ol defined benefit gratuity fund are
made to Life Insurance Corporation based an its advice. The accounting charge for benelits under the defined
benefit obligation is caleulated by independent actuary using the projected unit eredit method. Service costs and
net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on account of re-
measurements are recognized through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they oecur.

Other Benefit Plans

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled 1o compensated leave for which the Company records the liability
based on actuarial valuation computed under projected unit eredit method. This benelit is unfunded.

Compensated absences, which are expected 1o be availed or encashed beyand 12 months from the end of (he year
are trealed as other long-term employee benefits. The Company s lfability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of cach vear. Service costs and net interest expense or income is
reflected in the Statement of Profit and Luss,

Compensated absences that are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year
are treated as short lerm employce henefits and the obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost
ol tecumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as g result of the unused
entitlement as at the vear end,

Service Award Loyalty

Dependent on completion of serviee. the Company provides eertain monetary benefits to its employees atdelined
milestones alongwith providing non-eneashable leaves af cach respective milestone. The Company aceounts lor
such monetary benefils basis actuarial liability ascertained at the end of every repotting period.

Service Award Loyalty is a defined benefit obligation and the liability recoghized in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheel date. together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. An independent nctuary nsing the projected wnil
eredit method calculates the defined benefit obligations annually.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 1.oss in the period in which they oceur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested, Any asset resulting
from this caleulation is limited to past service cost. plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future ibutions (o (he schemes.
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)

This scheme has heen serapped by the Company with effect from 01 April 2020.

Share-based payments
Employees ol the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments. whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settled lransactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-setled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an approprinte valuation model,

That cost is recognised. wgether witha corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity.,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benelits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised (or equity-settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Compuny’s hest estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest, The staterment of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as ut the Beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Serviee and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the prant date fair
value ofawards. but the likelihood ol the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company *s hest estimate
ol the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are rellected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached 1o an award, but without an associated service
requirement. are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
ol an dward and lead 1o an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service andior performance
conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance andor service
conditions have not been met. Where awards inelude a market or non-vesting condition. the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the maorket or non-vesling condition is satislied. provided that all other
performuance andfor service conditions are satisfied,

When the tenns of an equity-settled award are modified. the minimum cxpense recognised is the expense had
the terms had not been modified, it the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised
for any modification that inereases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction. or is otheryise
heneficial to the employee as mensured nt the date of modification, Where an award is cancelled by the emtity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effeet of outstanding options is rellected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluied
carnings per share,

In sitvations where the Company issues share-based payments lo employees ol the subsidiary and does not cross
charge the cost fo such subsidiary, the cost pertaining to the vesting period is recorded as investment made in the
subsidiary with a corresponding eredit to equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of ihe Company by weighied
average number of equily shares (including compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares) outstanding
during the financial year,
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Notes to finaneial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

idiluted earnings per share

Diluted carmings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination ol basic earnings per share 1o lake info
accounl:

The after-income tax effect of interest and other linancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares
and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Rounding of amounts
All amounts discloged in the financial statements and notes have been rounded ofl 1o the nearest lakhs as

per the requirement of Schedule LI, unless otherwise stated.
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9 kguity shave eapitl and other equity

(i) Equity shave eapital

31 Mareh 2022 31 Mueeh 2021

Authorized equity sharve capital

00000 T3] Marel 2021 300.068) cquity shares of s, 16 eneh 30 i
150000 G Mareh 20210 150,00010.00 1% comptilsonly sonvertible cumulative preferenee shares of 210 e (COUTS) 13 15
13 45

Lsued, subseribed wod Tully paid up shares

230.959 31 March 2021 250,474) equity shates of Rs 14 cach 2 iy
NS T Mareh 2021 NILTCCCPS of Rs. 10 el frefer nite d below) -
T 25

s Reeonciliation sl number of equity shipes suistnding, amount sl the heginning and st the end of tie venr

S1 Mureh 2022 3 Marek 2021 >
N Aot No. Aanunt
ALt begmndsg of the year 280 47 15 233058 23
Add CCUPS converted into equity shares during the vear irefer nete d below) = " 17 416 2
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Lss: Converted mta cquity shares durig the vear frefier note d belaw ) = - T 1M 5t 1t
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s amd rights atiached w equity sharey

The Company s one eloss of equity shares Taving o par value of 210 per equity share Tach holder of equity share 1= entnled (o une vole per share, The
divadenil proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, 15 subjeel 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing aeneral mectimg The Company declares and
pays dividendds in Indien rupees T the evem of ligumdntion of the Company. the holders of equity slares will e entitled o receive the semaiming assets of the
Caonmpany in proporion o ther shareholding.

eter

e Terms and rights attached w CCCPS

Ther Company has only one class of 00019 CCUPS having o e value of 210 pee shuare Bach holder of preference shane cany prelerentinl righis viseg=vs
cquiy shares of the Company with a preferential dividend rate af (001% per annum. T he prefurence sharcholders shall be aon-participating i the surplus of
fimd CCCPS shall mimdatonily be converted in the ratio of vne cquity shaes for every six COCPS The CCCPS shall automatically stand sanverted inly equity
shares of the Company on 01 March 2021 The CCCPS shall cary preferentinl righls vis-a-vis equity shares o the Company with respeet 1o tepaviment m enso of
winding-up or repayment of capital.

During the previvus year an 01 Mareh 2021 104,500 CCCPS were converied 1w 17416 eytity shares im the ratio of ame cguily shiee for eviry sa COCPS as pu
the lerms ol share holders agrecent,

eShares held by holding company

Ot ol cyuity shires issued by de company, shives held by s holding company ate as below A1 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Colurge Limited (formerly known as NUT Technologivs Limited)
N3T79 (31 Mareh 2021 147,989 equity shares 2 15
i3 IS
L Dewsils of shaveholders holding move thim 5% shares in the Company
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mame of sharcholder Nooof Shares % of Holding o, of Shares ol Holding
held Tt
Equity shares
Colorge Hmited rerstwiile NITT Technalogies Limied) HATN 53,200 [EER 9 08%)
Colorge SmantSeve Lumited {erstahile NI SmarlSenve Limiesd) 13,150 Tia sl 13, 180 T 2y
Details ol shares held by praomoters as ot 31 Marel 2022
No.of
P ctor St "lmlll':':‘ B Chonge duying ‘::Ij I:j :::rl:; ool Total % change during
. ] the vesr Shares the year
beglnning Ihe sear
of the vear
Shinsha Arandh F7.50. {1750 - 0,0t ST
Venkat Raghavendra Liksln Marasimig Musthy Al 8782 (8.782) - 41y =1,
Prankay Joiprakash Kankult W78 18,7823 " 1) (il =Lty
Kranthi Kumgae Mempali 8782 (8,782 + IR STy
Vighn [MIDR] (1,083 0y Ty,
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Sotes o Fitaneisd statements Do the vear ended 3 3heeh 2022

S apmeents g0 bl e b iddee eneapt for shiee dat o o alhetwme stefods

Tiefaily of shares held by prombters as g4 31 Mareh 2000

No.oof
shitres at P T S ol sharres
(AN T o FIRES
Prumuoter Same {lig e
5 e vty
hesinging '

of the vear

wl the el of
e vear

ol Tutal
Shurey

o thiring
e year

Y vhat

Shisha sl ERTE
Warthata Kag hiavendia Lakshn Rarasimba Murthy Asadin B
Panha Japrakash kashain b
Krustht Kumal Vempad h.706

Vsl Munhy

3y
S
it
3%
Ty

(i) Either equlty

Securitivs preminm

Aalel T
Addi Premivm on shares sl for esereised oplinns
Closing halanee

ilerred liom emplnee stock oplion

Employ ee stoek options

Cpions granied Gl due

Add' Shares issued for exercised options

less: Exercise of stock oplions

Add: Impact of flar valuation on employes stock options
Closing balanee

Tor detmls of shisres veserved for ssue ander e Shaee ased payment plan of the company . please refr note 32

Retained enrnings

Opening balance

Netprofit tor the vear

lems o ather eompreliensive mcoms: reeognized ditectly in retaimed srmgs
Reneasurement of post cimployment benelit oblisuion net of tax

Ensidend pad N

Closing balance

Capital reserve

Omeping balance

Add Amount transferred on conversion of CCCPS 1o equily shares
Cloging halanee

Total

Nature and purpose of other veseryves
securitios preminom reserves

31 Sareh 2022

31 Mireh 2021

737

Bt

LA

i -
1 %
A6 737

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

a7 (1]
| 5
iy -
- 7
607

31 Mareh 2022

1 Murel 2021

4053 ENTT
3530 |63
24 (25}
(2.0498) -
5,522 4,055

31 Mareh 2022

31 Nureh 2021

] -
- u
8 9
6,337 4808

securities premium s used to reeord e premium on issue of shares. The reserve = utilised in accordanee with e prowisions of the Companics Act, 2013

Employee stoek aption reserve

Share oplions outstanding aceount is wsed to recognise the wiant date fir vilue of aptions issued 1o canpilpyess under Whishworks Fmplovee Stock Option Plan

2006 Rafir note 12
Cupital reserve

Capilal reserve s used (o reesgmse profit or loss on purchose, sale, issue or cancellation of the cifily instriments

Distribution made
Intern dividend for the vear ended on 31 March 20220 INR 816 67 per share 131 Mareh 2024 81 1l et shares”

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

2098

2,098
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Cnlurge S5 Privare §indted thavieely Soea oo W ahvoorke LG npsming vl § ad
CONE D200 620 01 €1
Sotes o finpncial strements for the s wided 30 Mareh 30232
iV kst 1 Desbuase Reppecs | asddie, oy : AL 1R
T Provishons A1 el Ztlul_.?h” A1 Ngrel 2021
Lurrent S L urrent Current “son (Current
e e et 157 an 9 A
CRatuiny troton iy 271 is e ¥ A2
a0 ~ Hl _ Aln
L Flngncial Hahilities
fir Trade payahiles 31 Stwreh 2022 41 Aaeeh 2021
Frstinboustandding dugs oF i epterperses amd small enterpises (refer pore 24 I3 I
Potal dnpstimding dises ol ereditees othes than micre enterprises and sinall cierpnees ¢ ; a8t 5

©ineltbbes pivitble e pelutest partes oot o Be 00 3T S el 2000 70 ceeer ot 31y
iy ¥

Hreal up of fnmreial Habilites corvicd st amortised cost

S chent fease Dby fros pate 38
Prande payalbles qrefer poie 11)
Caprent matureies aF lease Dabhins ceies nnke 3499

e — OB

31 Murch 2012 3t March 2021

146 [
LO L] Nt
L ol
1.0967 L140

i o o fnllowine peciods fram due dite of payment

Particulirs
L L nbilled

; i s sl
Lesy than | Mot 8 Fintal tos st

{a1 Dimlispated dues < Ginecro enterprises S small enterpises
1) Undisputed does - Crediters erliers miere emterprises il

' 3 | ity
sukl cnkerprises

i I -2 yeitrs 2-3 vears = Narel 31,
year years e
13 ’ - - K]
2Ho ~ - - iRn

Cuts ling for following peciods Trom dine dare of payment

Total (as at

Paeticulars s Less than | ’ More than 3
’ Unbilled ¢ I-2years -3 venrs March 31,
vear Jears
¢ 4 2021
(11 Linchaputed dues - micre enterprises and small enterpuises - el - - s 4
) Ulndisputed thies - Creditors otliers micse enterprises nil 10 155 ) N B 145

sanil] entergnises

12 Linhilities fov current tas (net)

Provision for ties (et of advanee ris}

13 Other curvent Habilities
Statgtony dues
Deferied revenne
Othier payahles
Emplovee benefis payalie

30 Maeeh 2022 31 March 2021

46 LG

46 Ih

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a5

: 4 9
160 il
343 263
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the s eur emled 31 Vaech 1021

s Enchan Rupoes Balle

e T shaee el s dbe daiicioc

(8

Hesenue Do cantracts with cosiomers

Sale ol

sl pote $h

Nher income

Ehavaddend invonme Hoim sabssbialy

Lt eal ot dapuoss

Epemmaline of disconnt o securty e
Ciatn o exalige Bclanens 1)
Lt on i v ass21s (el

Recosery [ sahandiziv For commati ceporale stppan sanices

Aclistment a8 qeeomil of pe-rssessment ol leses davif el pote 35)

szt inhine

b it venandie of

Fmpliyee henefits expense

Salaries, bonwes and allawamees

Conrilution 1 provicdent and cilier fids

bl sl prment expitese (refer note 32)

nole 273
Stafl wellie expenaes

Deprreciation amil gmorfisnlion expense

-, plant and equipiment (reforn note 3)
Aunortization of mtanglile nssets (fefer nole 13
Dheprecution ol mght-guse tssets (efer nole 15)

hiler expenses
IRental ¢hanpes
Raves mel tases
[lewtrieny aml water chmges
Telephone amd commuiiciton charges
Larpranl aned pofessional fees
Tonells 1 comvey anee
TRew e expuinscs
Insivamee &
Repairs and manitenanee
= Plam ane inachmeny
< Othars
Allowmiee for deubtiul debns
Tyt w andiors (refer note 18(0) helow)
USSR espendituee ireten note [8th) below)
Mszellaneous expenses

ANl due 1o wnnding of 't nearest lakhs

1Hin) Details of paymernds to aulitors

Stanory andit

s pudn

Gl ol packet expensed
In nther eapacities:
Cernligation fees

ik e o rouriemg o0 pearest ks

150 Details ol CSRexpenditure

) Givess nmennt requined 1o be spent by Compary dunmg the yea
by Anmeunt approved by the Board to be spent during the sem
<1 Ansst spent diing e veur on
Conznicionicguisition of any assel
Uy prarpose other than Constonction’ aesuisiion of an asse
a1 Details related 1w spent abligatins
1 Contobution W Poble Trost
i) Coreilmion to Chariable Trus

" i wett endedd
Slupel 2022

B tie yead ended

Slareh 2l

3.740 n, Flh
45,740 6720
| 3RS
1 x
3 |
¥ +
W
......... F‘I e
1015 Aol
3,081 Jio%
20 52
1 Ul
24 19
SA06 3432
102 e
i 5
112 |17
U7 151
- "
21l 5
23 ¥iiLs
x5 23
ol (3
17 -
MK |58
il [
T 2
E 0wl
I I
20 13
58 42
| o
1.0k
17 12
2 b
@ 0
| |
1] [
&8 13
58 2
ih 42
i 42
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Sontes to fimancial sttenments Tar e seas ended 31 Vareh 2otz
{All s i Thdian Bapees Daibs wnadt i 1 i

Loeby

gt iny ~hatgein

1 Finanee cpsts
Fiterest e fepae alabities (oafer oty 730 ¥ -
e aned Bt ehpeees ] 1
It - othiers il -
Finance costs eapemsed inproficortoss an T 26
2 Ineumie fas expense
it Inenme fas expense
Curzent tas 736
Anljarspinent aftag velanng 1o culie jeiis {3
Prefeneid iy 1
@3
(b Amount reengnised directly in equigy e
Eretiarted tan asser'tlashiiogs on ot comprehiensive manne 1 BE
deal fni-{lg 453 ki

For ey eatled
6 2up2l

Farihe s

Slasvh 2021

{e] Reconwiliation of tax expense amd (ee pecounting prolitmultiplied by Dudin's wmy rene:

Far tle year etded

Far the vear ended

March 2(122 Mareh 2021

Protie before menme 1s expense Dnehiding OC 1 T 545
Loacied s vates e Dnedia pEH el 25407,
Computed expected 1% expelise L a4t
Fax effect of amounis w hich aee not deduetible (vabile) in cateulatiog taaa e ineome:
Lifect of non-deductible expenses 1 23
Efleer of deduction avadled nader seetion 800 o Incoms Tas Ach, 1961 {300 =
Feet i current tax due to dilferent tirs vte an dividend o5 1EFBBI of the Income Tas Act, 1901 i i -
Adfjustinents iy reapeet of Gt o Lo ! previous vears 1) iin
ihers 3 S

453 680




Unforge 5F Private Limited (Drstwhite Whishworks I'T Consulting Pvi, Ltd.)
CIN: UT2200TG2010PTCH6T287

Notes tu financial statenrents for the yeur ended 31 March 2822

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

2L Earnings per share

31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021

Basic earnings per equity share of Rs. i cach 382 761
From operations attributable to the cquity holders of the company
Dituted earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 1.382 760

From operations atiributable to the equity holders of the company

Reconcilintions of earnings used in ealeulating earnings per

share

(i) Dasic carnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used 3536 1.903
in caleulating busic carnings per shave:

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Prolit ativibutable to the cquity holders of the company used 3.536 1.903
in caleulating diluted carnings per share:

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

(i) Weighted average number ol equity shares used as the 235,432 250,474

denominator in calculating basic earnings per share

(i1} Weighted average number of equity sharcs and potential
equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating diluied 255,822 250,474
earnings per share

22, Commitments
Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for amounted are estimated Lo be
Nil (31 March 2021: Nil).

23, Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The principal amount and the interest due fhereon

remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end ol each

accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small 13 4
enterprises
Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of - =
scetion 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) bul without
adding the interest specilied under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at - -
the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable - -
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid o the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduetible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Aet 2006
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oforge S Privaie Limited (Erstwhile Whishwerls £
CiNe UT2

Consulting Pvi, Lid.)

20T Q20 H0PTCB6T287

Notes to Thiancial statements for the yvear ended 31 Maveh 2022
(AL amounts in indiar Rupees Lakhs, exeept Tor share data or as otherwise stated)

4.

20,

27.

h secardunce with the Definitive Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and Sharcholders Agrecment (S1A)
entered between the Company. its promoters and Colorge Linited (erstwhile NITT Technofogies Limited)
o 6 April 2019, Colorge limited (erstwhile NHUT Technologics Limited) has sequired 58.22% of the equily
share capital of the Company on 14 June 2019, During the yveur 2020-21 Colvree SmartSeeve Limited
terstwhile NII'T SmartServe Limited), wholly owned subsidiary of Colorge Limited has acquired 18.533%
and Coforge Limited has acquired 5.28% in June 2020 (rom the pramoters as parl of lranche lwo acquisition.
Tranche thres acquisition for the balance sharcholding Trom promoters has been acquired by Colorge
Limited during the year 2021-22,

Dhving the previous years, the Company had identitied non-compliances with certain regulations under
Foreign Exchange Muanagement Act, 1999, relating to non-submission‘delayed [iling ol Overseas Direct
Investment (*ODI") [orms. non-obtaining of UIN, non-filing of annual perlformanee reports. non-receipt of
share certificale. ele,

In respect of Calorge ST Limited UK (erstwhile known as Whishworks Limited. UK) (wholly owned
subsidiary), the Company in the previous years, has transterred the consideration for purchase of shares in
Coforge SF Limited UK w its erstwhile shareholders in response to email received from RBIL on 16 May
2019, Further, the Company has complied with the aforesaid non-compliances and has filed a response to
Reserve Bank of India intimating the measures tuken towards aforesaid non-compliances and is awaiting
further response from RBI.

In respeet of Coforge PTY Ltd. (erstwhile known as Whishworks PTY Limited). Australia (wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company). during 2019-20 the Company has obtained Unique Tdentification Number
(UIN) from the Authorised Dealer Bank and RBL. Ou receipt of UIN for Coforge PTY Lid (erstwhile known
as (Whishworks PTY Limited), Australia, the Company has remitted the amount of investment (AUD 100).
The Company is in the process ol filing the Annuyl Performance Repurts as per the requirement of the
Master Divection issued by the RBI for the financial years 2015-16 to 2020-21.

Based on the management assessment, the Company has made a provision o Rs 5 in the previous years for
the possible eflects of such non-compliances and is of the view that the amount provided is adequate and
no further provision is required in current year in the accompanying [inancial statements of the Company.

Segment information

As per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. where the financial report contains both the consolidated linancial
statements ol a parent as well as the parent’s separate financial statements, segment information is required
only in the consolidated financial statements, accordingly no segment information is disclased in these
financial statements ol the Company.

Defined Benefit Plan
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
Employees who are in continuous service lor a period of § vears are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 13 days salary multiplied by the number of years of completed service. The Company
also vansfers its employees to its subsidiary Company “Coforge SF Lid™ in United Kingdom for onsite
work and they become the employee of Subsidiary Company thereafter. The gratuity plan is a funded plan
and the company makes contributions 1o Life Insurance Corporations of India. The Company does not fully
fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintaining over of period of time based on
estimations of expected gratuity payments.




Cofurge SF Private Limited (Ersivwhile Whishworks I'T Consulting Pl Ltd.)
TN UT2200TG2UI0PTON6T287

Motes to financind stafemends for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

(AT amounts in Indian Rupees Lukhs. except for share data or us otherwise stated)

Balance sheet amounnty - Gratuity
The amounis reconized i the balanee sheet and the movements in the net defined benefir obligation over
the year are as follows;

Present value  ¥Fair value of Net
N— e Of obligation  planassets  amount
01 April 2020 232 (5) 227
e — = - &
Interest expenses tincome) |5 - A5
Plan assets writlen ol 3 5
Total amount recognized in profit or loss - 82 5 87
Hemeasurcements
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 2 - 2
Loss from change in [inancial assumptions 35 - 35
Fxperience loss/(gains) 13 - 13
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive 50 T 50
Employer's contributions - “ =
Employer direct benefit payments (14) - (i)
nefit payments - - -
Aprit2021 350 - 350
Current service cost o a 95 - 95
Interest expense/ (income) 21 - 21
Plan asset written off’ - §
Total amount recognized in profit or loss o (BL3) A 116
Remeasurements
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 39 - 39
Loss from change in financial assumptions (10} - (10}
Experience loss/{(zains) (68) - (68)
Total amount recognized in other compreheasive 39 - (39)
Employer's contributions - - -
Fimployer direct benefit payments (76) - (76)
Benefit paymenls - - -
31 March 2022 o 351 - 351

The net linbility disclosed above refates to funded and unfunded plans as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of funded obligations 351 356
Fair value of plan asscts - =
Defieit of funded plan 31 350
Unfunded plans - g 5
Deficit of gratuity plan RRU-.... V..

©c SF
Q_Co A

S 2

L (HYDERABAD | —
O, ~
O o)




(
c

Motes to financial siatements for the year ended 31 Flaveh 2022

I

l
L4
n
!

i U72200TGZGHOPTC067287

torge SF Private Limited (Frstwhile Whishworks T Consulting Py Lid,)

(AT amounts in Iindizn Rupees Laklts, except tor share data or as others ise stated)

Principal assumptions

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity ebligations foi the Company s plans are shown below:

LYiscount rale
Salary growih rate

31 Mareh 2022
e

10.00%

31 March 2021

6.90%
(0.00%%

The estimates of luture salary inerease. considered in actuarial valuation, whe account of inflation. seniority.
promotion and other relevant factors. such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis

A quantilative sensilivily analysis for significant assumptions ol the above liubility as at 31 March 2022 and

A1 March 2021 is as shown below:

(a) Effeet of 100 basis points change in assumed discount
rate on defined benefit obligation
- 100 basis points increase
(Discount rate (%) increase)
- 100 basis points decrease
(Discount rate (%) decrease)

{(b) Effeel of 100 basis points change in assumed salary
escalation rate on defined benelit obligation
- 100 basis points increase
(Salary rate (%) increase)
- 100 basis points decrease
(Salary rate (%) decrease)
(e) Effect of 100 basis points change in assumed
withdrawal rate on defined benefit obligation
- 100 basis points increase
(Withdrawal rate (%) increase)
- 100 basis points decrease
(Withdrawal rate (%) decrease)

31 March2022 _ 3iN

330 338
-6.0% -3.5%
375 304
6.7% 3.8%
372 364
6. 1% 3.7%
331 338
~5.7% -3.6%
347 349
-1.2% -0.6%
356 353
1.2% 0.6%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method ihat extrapolates the impact on
delined benefit obligation as @ result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period.
Expeeted benefit payments for the year ending

Five years pay-ouls
Year |
Year 2
Year 3

Year 4
Year 5
6 1o 10 years

35 72

37 63

40 T

42 3l

43 44

174 124
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Coforge 5F Private Limited (Erstwhile Whishawvorks 1T Consulting Pvt. Lid,)

CIN: UT2200T4GZ008PTCR6T287
Notes to financial statementy for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022

(AL amowns in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
|

29,

(a)

(i)

(ii)

FFair valoe including fair value Ierarchy
Category wise classification of financial instruments

Vidued at amortized cost

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Trade receivables +4.392 2.636

Cash and bank balances 1,836 2,475

Cither financial assets 50 208

6,378 5409

Financial liabilities

Yalued at amortized cost

Trade payables 399 389

Lease liability 1.508 7S]
L7 1,140

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, unbilled revenne, trade receivables, rade
payables, lease liabilities, wnd other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturitics ol these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilitics is included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The
lair values For security deposits (included in other linancial assets) were euleuluted based on cash Nows
discounted using a current lending rate.

The Company does not have any financial asset other than those carried at amortised cost.

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilitics comprise trade and other payables and lease liability. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to markel risk. eredit visk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. Below is the summary of various risk:

Market risk
Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows af a [inancial instrument will OQuctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the {air value or [uture cash Mows of a financial instrument will Huctpate
hecause of changes in market interest vates, There ware no borrowings on the financial statements. Hence,
there is no concentration of interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign eurrency risk is the risk that the fair value or [uture cash fows of an exposure will fluctuate because
ol changes in loreign exchange rates.
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Coforge SF Private Limited {Erstwhile Whishworks IT Consulling Pyi, Lid.)
CIN: UT2200TG2OT0PTCO6T28Y

Noies to finsncial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lalhs. excepl for share data or as otherwise stated)

The fluctuation in fureign currency exchimege rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Proli
and Loss and Other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction references more than one
currency or where assets ¢ liabilities wie denominated ina curreney other than the Tunctional eurrency of the
Company,

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are
subject to risks arising [rom fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate 1o
(Tuctuations in US Daollar. Greal Britain Pound. United Arab Umimtes Dirham and Buros against the
functional currency of the Company. The Company evaluates the impuaet ol foreign exchange rate
fluctuations by assessing its exposure (o eachange rate risks, The Company does not enter into trade
financial instruments including derivaiive lnancial instruments Tor hedging its foreign currency risk. The
appropriateness ol the risk policy is reviewed periodically with reference 1o the approved foreign currency
risk management policy followed by the Company.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonable possible change in the foreign currency
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant:

fmpact on profit after tax

Trade and other receivables: 31 Miarch 2022 31 March 2021
INR/USD

Increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 19%)* 8 9
Decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - 19%)* (8) (9)
INR/GBP

Increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - [%)* 18 i7
Decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - [%%)* (18) (17)
INR/AED

Increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - | %) 1

Decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - | %)#* (N

INR/ELIR

Increase by %6 (31 March 2022 - [%)#* 2 4]
Decerease by 1% (31 March 2022 - %)+ (2) (i

Trade payables:

INR/USD
Increase by 1% (31 March 2022 - 1%)* - (2)
Decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - [%0)* - 2
INR/GBP
Increase by 194 (31 March 2022 - 1%)* (1) &

Decrease by 1% (31 March 2022 - |95)* | -




Cofurge SF Privale Lindted (Erstwhile Whishworks Y Consulling Pyt Lid.)
CIN: U72Z2001T G201 17067287

MNoles to laancial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

(AT amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share datz or as otherwise stated)

{ asle and bank halanees:

INRAUISH

Increase by 196 (31 March 2022 - 19%)# - |
Decrease by (%5 (31 March 2022 - o)™ = ()
INR/GBP

Increase by 196 (31 March 2022 - 1%)#* = 3
Decrease by [ (31 Mareh 2022 - 199)#* - (5)

* Holding all other variables constant
% Nil due to rounding olT 1o nearest fakhs

(b) Credit risk

Trade receivables

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a linancial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a linancial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operaling nctivities
(primarily trade receivables and other receivables).

‘The maximum exposure to the eredit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade reccivables amounting
to Rs.4.392 (31 March 2021: 2,636), other receivables of Rs. 147 (31 March 2021: 217). Trade receivables
and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned through subsidiaries and
other corporate customers. The Company earns revenues from its subsidiary where the payment is received
as and when it is due and from other customers for which the Company has nsed the expected eredit loss
maodel 1o assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables and unbilled revenue and has provided it
wherever appropriate,

BBasis this assessment. the allowance for doubtlul trade receivables of Rs. 21 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31
March 2021: 11) is considered adequute.

Similar assessment is done in respect of other receivables of Rs. 147 lakhs (31 March 2021: 217) as at 31
March 2022 while arriving at the level of provision that is required.

In tespect ol security deposit (including prepayment) of Rs. 96 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
51), the Company has assessed the counterparty eredit risk and believes that no provision is required for its
recoverability.

The following table aives the movement in allowance for expected credit loss for the vear ended 31 March
2022:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance al the beginning 11 11
Expected credit loss recognized# 10 ]
Balance at the end n o

# Nil due to rounding of [ to nearest lakhs

Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash Mow that is
generdted from operations. The Company has no ontstanding borrowings from hanks. The Company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity visk
i sived,
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31.

Maturities of financial Habilities

The table below provides details regarding the contraciunl maturitics of significant financial Habilitics as ol

A1 Mareh 2022

3F March 20622
Trade payables
Lease liability

31 March 2021
Trade payables
Lease liability

Capital management
Risk munagement

Less than ! 13 3-8 More than 5 Total
SO S - SRS, (). O . | | . S
399 « = - 99

46 7 50 1.375 1508

445 7 80 1.375 LY07

389 - - - 389
G 168 239 283 751

450 168 239 283 1,140

For the Company’s capital management. capital includes issued equity share capital. share premium and all
other quity reserves attributable to the sharcholders. The primary objectives of the Company's capital
management are to maximise the sharcholder value and safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern. The Company has no outstanding borrowings. The funding requirements are senerally met through

operating cash flows generated,

Name of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of relationship

Name (:I‘llx_cj:t{m_na_n_v_

Ultimate Holding Company

Holding Company
Subsidiary Companics

Fellow Subsidiary

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Baring Private Equity Asia GP VII Limited (w.e.l 17 May
2019)

Coforge Limited (formerly known as NITT Technologies
Limited) (w.e.l 14 June 2019)

Colorge SF Limited (erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)
Whishworks PTY Limited (Australia) (umil 8 February 2021)
Coforge SmartServe Limited

Coforge Ine. (erstwhile NIIT Technologies Inc. USA
Coforge FZ LLC (erstwhile NIIT Technologies IF'Z 1.1.C)
(w.c.l 0] September 2020)

Coforge UK Limited

Colorge Technology Limited (Erstwhile NIIT Techn. UUSA)
Sudhir Singh (Director)

Sanjeev Prasad (Director [rom 135 June 2020)

Ajay Kalra (Director from 15 June 2020)

Suman Kumar Konkumalla ( Divector)

Pankaj Jaiprakash Kankatli (Chiel Information OfGcer uniil
31 March 2021)

srikrishna Yenkata Raghavendra Aracdhi - (Chiel Executive
Officer until 31 March 2021) & (Whole Time Director until 06
October 2021)
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Notes (o finaneial stutements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. exeept for share data or as otherwise stated

(a) Balanee outstanding as at the year-vnd:

Coferge Limited (Erstwhile NTIT Teehnologies Limited)
Disclosed under trade payables
Discloged under trade Receivahle

Coforge Ine. (Eestwhite NI Techuolopies Inc.)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforae Uk Lid
Diselosed under lrade receivables

Coforge SF Led (Erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Disclosed under investments in equity instruments
Disclosed under trade payable

Disclosed under other financial assets

Coforge Teehnology Ltd. (Erstwhile NHT Techn. USA)
Disclosed under trade Payables

Colorge FZ LLC (Erstwhile NITT Technologies FZ LLC)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Whishworks PTY Limited (Australia)
Disclosed under Investments in equity instruments
{until 8 February 2021)

‘Transactions during the year

Coforge SI' Litd UK (Erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)
Revenue from operations

Recovery for support services

Reimbursement ol expenses from (receivedireceivable)
Purchase of software subscription and support services
Investmenl during the year

lLegal and Professional charges

Dividend received during the vear

Whishworks PTY Limited (Australia)
Dis-Investment during the year #'

Coforge Limited (Evrstwhile NIIT Technologies Limited)
Revenue from operations

Allotment of Equity Shares

Legal and Professional Charees

Dividend paid during the vear

Coforge [ne. (Kesiwhile NITT Technologies Inc.)
Revenue from operations
Legal and Professional charges

Coforge FZ LLC (Erstwhile NITT Technologies FZ LLC)
Revenue [rom operations

Coforge 8T Private Limited (Lrstwhile Whishwerks IT Consalting Pyl Ld))

Mareh 2022

31 March 2021

7l

27

-t
e,
g b -l
g d B

L]

88

260

926
121

207

31 March 2022

31 Mavch 2021

4,518
384
68

38

118
1,585

1,746

165
24

100

598

3365
453
24
30

4

90
23

26

]
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Coforge SmariServe Linsited

Dividend paid during the vear 152 -
Srilerishna Venkata Raoehavendes Avardhi

Remuneration® - 63
Pankaj Jaipralkash Kanlaatt

Remuneration™ - 63

FAs oratuity and compensated absences are computed lor all the employees in agaregate. the amounts
relating to the key managerial personnel cannot be individually identified.
# Nil due 1o rounding ofT 1o nearest lakhs.

A" In the current year the Company has write ol the investment made due to closure of operations in Australia.

Employee Stock Option Plan

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the members in their annual general meeting held on 30 September
2016. the Company instituied an Employee Stock Option Plan by name of “Whishwaorks Stock Emplovee
Plan - 20167 (I:SOP scheme). The said Scheme has been formulated in consultation with the Board of
Directors and the Company had resolved (o issue equity shares not more than 5% of the issued equity
share capital ol the Company.

The aforesaid Scheme was further modified in the Y 2019-20, by way of resolution passed in
Extraordinary General Meeting on 29 April 2019 and accordingly the period of vesting for ESOP options
to the extent of 30% was modified to be May 14, 2019 (as against the original vesting period of 31 March
2020) and for the remaining 70% options, the vesting period was extended to 31 March 2021,

During the financial year 2016-17. Compensation Committee had granted 10,939 stock options to eligible
employees. at an exereise price o Rs 30 per equity share. of which 6.483 stock options are outstanding as
at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020 6.543).

In the previous year, these shares got vested on 15 March 2021, However, the aforesaid Scheme was
further modified by way of resolution passed in Extraordinary General Meeling on 30 March 2021 and
accordingly the exercise period of these options was extended to 4 June 2021, During the current year
samcec were GXErCiSL‘d.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:
Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and
movements in. share optiens during the year:

_____ 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Number WAEP Number WAEP
(Rs. Per equity (Rs. Per
- equity share)
Outstanding at 1 April : 6.345 30
Granted during the year - - - ' -
Exercised during the year 6485 30 - -

Forfeited/Expired during the year - - (60) 3
Outstanding at 31 March . - 6,485 30

Exercisable at 31 March = 2 s N
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33.

(i)

The fair value o options were estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Seholes-Merton method with
the following assumptions:

438k Tree inlerest rate (%) 1.65
Weighted average share price (Rs.) 1.070
Remaining contractual life (vears) 1.08
Expected life of the option (years) 342
Lspected volatility (%) 61.68
Weighted average fuir value as on geant date (Rs.) 1,063

Expected dividend yield (%) -

The expected lite ol the share options is bused on historical data and current expectations and is not
necessarily indicative of excrcise patterns that may oceur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility over a period similar to the lile of the options is indicative of luture trends.
which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

Significant accounting judgements estimates and assurmptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements.
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount ol assels or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources ol estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitics within the next financial year. are deseribed below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing eireumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due (o market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such chanees are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The cost of the defined gratuity plan and the present value of gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial assumptions that may differ from the actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 1o the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed af each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of governmenl bonds in currencics
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benelit oblivation.

Depreciation en property, plant and equipment

Diepreciation on property. plant and equipment is calculated on written down value method till the date of
acquisition by Coforge Limited (Erstwhile NIFT Technologies Limited). Post-acquisition. the Company
has adopted straight-line basis of depreciation (in line with the group policy) using the rates arrived at
based on the useful lives and residual values of all its property. plant and equipment eslimated by the
management. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly refleet its estimate of
the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment, though these ates in certain cases
are different from lives preseribed under Schedule 1 of the Companies Act. 2013,
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(iv)

)

(vi)
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i)

I)

Taxes

Significant manugement judgement is required w determine the amount of deferred ty assets thal can be
recognised. based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits wgether with Fature tux
planning stratewics. Refer note for details on tases.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds i3 recoverable
amount, which is the higher ol its fair vilue less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value Jess
costs of dispesal caleulation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted al arm's
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asse. The
value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model. The cash Mows are derived from the budeet for the next
five vears and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed w or
significant future investiments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable mmount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCT mode! as well as the expecied future
cash-inflows and the erowth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrving value of investments carried al amortised cost annually. or more
frequently when there is indication for impainnent. 11" the recoverable amount is less than its carTying
amount. the impairment loss is accounted for.

Estimation of uncertainties relating (o the global heaith pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19)
The Company has considered the possible effects that may resull from the pandemic relating to COVID-19
in the preparation of these standalone financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts
of financial and non-financial assets, In developing the assumptions relating o the possible future
uncertaintics in the global economic conditions hecause of this pandemic, the Company has. at the date of
approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sourees of information including eredit
reports and related information and economic forecasts and expects that the carrying amount ol these assels
will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these (inancial statements,

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregate revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customiets:

Vertical 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Banking and {inancial services ' 613 441
Travel, Transpon and Logistics o0 481
Retail . 1.709 3,989
Insurance 97 76
Qthers 0.235 1,739
Total revenue from contraets with customers 8,746 ' o 6,726
Indin 1.850 1.233
Outside India 6.896 5.491
Total revenue from contracts with custemers - 8'74{‘..... - _6,726

Contraet balances

31 Mz rel 2022 31 March 2021

Trade receivables 4397 2,6‘36
Unbilled revenue (Conltract assets) 107 in
Deferred revenue (Contract liability) 58 7

*
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Notes to financial sttlements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

{Allnmounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepr for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars nbout Contract assets (Linbilied revenue) 3 March 2022 3 March 2021
Balance at the beginning 30 as
Habilled revenue classified (o trade reeeivable upen billing o Al 35

customer out ol opening unbilled revenue

Particulars aboat Contract Habilities (Deferved revenue) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning 7 -
Delerred revenue classified to trade receivable upon billing w0 7

customer out of opening delirred revenue

¢)  Performance obligations
There is no remaining performance obligation on the eantracts entered by the Company as on 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021 Nil).

35, Leases:
The Company had a lease contract for building used in its operations for a initial lease term of' 7 years (balance
lease period 5.75 years). In the current year, the management has decided 10 shifi its operations 1o another
premises and enlered into a new lease contract for the period of 5 years with estension option for 10 vears
turther, As a result. the existing ROU asset and Lease liability for the carlicr lease contract was restated for
the balance lease term and accordingly being given effect to in financial statements. For the new lease
contract, the Company is reasonably certain to exercise Lthe extension option.

The Company also elected to use the recoanition exemption for lease contract that, at the commencement
date. has a lease term ol 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (“short-term lease™)

Sct out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use asset recognised and the movements during the vear:

Particulars . Building Lease
As at 31 March 2020 S0
Addition 795
Depreciation expense (117
As at 01 April 2021 T68
Addition 1498
Depreciation expense (112)
Impact on account of reassessment (656)
As a2t 31 March 2022 1,498

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liahility (included under other financial liabilitics) and the
movements during the vear:

Particulars Building Lease
As at 31 March 2020 93
Addition 795
Accretion of interest 22
Payviments

As at 61 April 2021

Addition

Aceretion of interest 3
Payments (138)
Impuct on account of reassessment (640)
As ai 31 March 2022 1,508
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38.

39,

40.

41,

I respeet of pravident fund (PF) there are numercus interpretative issues relating o Supreime Court (SC)

Judgement on PE dated February 28. 2019, In relation to this. the Company has ereated a provision [rom

FY 200 1-12 1o Y 2018-19 amounting to Rs. 32 in the previous years. The Compuny is in the process of
identitying the employees w wham this Hability is required o be discharaed. post which smount will be
transterred 1o their respective PEF accounts.

Interesis in other entifies

The Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are set out below. Unless olherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held diveetly by the Company and the proportion of
awnership interests held cquals the voting rights held by the Company. The country of incorporation or
vegistration is also their principal pluce of business.

Name Place of Ownership interest Owaership interest Principal
business/  held by the company held by the Non- Activities
country of controlling interest
incorporat 31 31 31 31
fon March March March Wiarch
______________ 2022 2021 2022 2021
Direct subsidiaries
Coforge SF Limited  Uniled 100 100 - - Soltware
Kingdom development
Colorge PTY Australia - 100 - - Software
Limited (until 8 development

[February 2021)

Social security code

The Code on Social Seeurity. 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benelils during emplovment and post-
employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when
it comes into cflect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Subsequent events
No significant subsequent events have been observed till 02 May 2022 which may require any additional
disclosure or an adjustment (o the (inancial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affaire (*MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments (o the existing standards
under companies (Indian Accounting standards) rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022,
MCA amended the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 as below

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment;

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any.
shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the direetly attributable costs considered as o
part ofan item of properly. Plant. and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1.2022. The company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact

on its consolidated linancial statements,

'y

o

(TR

®)
O

*

GESPA

(A
HYDERABAD | —~
n-..i
(&)

.
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{All amounts i Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share dala or as atherwise stated)

lud A5 37 = Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

The amendment specifies that the “cost ol [ulfilling™ a contract comprises the “costs that relate direetly o the
contract”. Costs thut relate directly 10 a contract can cither be incremental costs of flfilling that contenct
(examples would be divect labour, materials) or an allocation of ather costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property. plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effeetive date for adoption ol this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or afier April 1. 2022, although carly adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact is not expected To he material.

For 5.1 Batliboi & Associates LLP _ For and behall ol Bowrd of Directors of
1CATL Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Coforge 5 Private Limited (formerly known as
Chartered Accountants ' Whishwaorks I'T Consulting Pvt, Ijid.)
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per Atin Bhargava Ajay Kalra éﬂjcev Prasad
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 304777 DIN: 03157214 DIN: (7490849
Place: Place: (URVLRAN Place: GUVGRAM
Date: 02 May 2022 Date: 02 May 2022 Date: 02 May 2022
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